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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Stone Church is a small, rectangular sandstene structure built in
1852. The church is of simple design with a sheet-metal roof. The stone is
laid in an irregular pattern, some small, thin stones being laid together to
achieve the wall thickness of between one foot and one and one-half feet,
and some large stones which have the entire thickness. The floor is sup-
ported by beams cut with a vertical saw, a process that was typical for the
period. The church contains the original pews and altar, which show evi-
dence of hand-planing, despite a covering of black paint.

Alterations to the building consist of sheet rock on the interior walls
and temporary small rooms made across the back by using thin wood panels.
The concrete front steps are also a fairly recent addition.

There is a cemetery behind the church on a grassy knoll. A dirt road
circles the cemetery, which has graves marked by stones ranging from small
ones on Civil War-era burials to large, free-standing monuments. There are
also a few cast-iron fences surrounding some graves.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Stone Church is significant in local history and the history of ar-
chitecture and religion in Georgia. Locally, it is important as one of the
first church bodies created in the newly opened territory of the 1830s and
as the oldest church structure still in use in the county, as well as the
site of activity during the Civil War. Architecturally, it is significant
due to its sandstone construction, a type rarely seen in Georgja churches.
Religiously, it is important as one of the few antebellum Presbyterian
churches in Georgia, a state that in 1850, shortly before the construction
of this edifice, was ninety percent Baptist and Methodist, with the majority
of Presbyterian churches being in urban areas.

The Stone Church was organized as the Chickamauga Presbyterian Church
on September 2, 1837, its organizational document reading in part:

We, whose names are here unto subscribed, being mem-
bers of the Presbyterian Church, but having removed from
our respective churches and settled in this vicinity
where there is no organized church, desiring to enjoy
the means of grace and the ordinances of the gospel as
administered according to the Presbyterian form, do agree
to associate ourselves together for the purpose of being
regularly organized into a Presbyterian Church according
?o tge principles and form laid down in the confession of

aith.

The first meetings were held in a log schoolhouse approximately one-
quarter of a mile south of the present structure and later in a small
frame house north of the present structure. The present sandstone structure
was erected starting in the summer of 1850. Stone was hauled by charter
church member Robert Magill and his two brothers from a nearby quarry at
White Oak Mountain. The building was completed in 1852 at a cost of $1600,
part of which was donated by the Rev. W.H. Johnston, who gave one year's
salary.

[continued]
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Stone Church, as far as records indicate, was the first church organized
in what was then Walker County when it was opened for settlement during and
after the Cherokee Indian Removal. Catoosa County was created out of Walker
County on December 5, 1853.

During the Civil War, the advancing Federal soldiers headed toward
Atlanta from Chattanooga and came to nearby Ringgold, Georgia. After the
battle there, they turned east down what is now U.S. 41/76. Brigadier Gen-
eral Judson Kilpatrick reported on May 2, 1864, that he met the Confederates
one mile from "Stone Church" that morning and drove them to Tunnell Hill.
The Confederates had twenty-one wounded, and the Federals, three. Tradition
has always been that due to the church's substantial construction, it was
used as a Confederate, as well as Union hospital. No church minutes are en-
tered from November 2, 1863, through May 28, 1865. It was considered a "No-
man's land between the two armies at Ringgold and Dalton" and was "unfit for
services due to the war."

After the war, church services resumed and it remained a Presbyterian
church. Its name was officially changed in 1912 to Stone Church, due to
the Presbyterian church in Chickamauga, Georgia (begun in 1910), changing
its name to Chickamauga Presbyterian Church.

After the Presbyterians ceased to use the building in 1921, it was pur-
chased by the Methodists, who held services there. It went briefly into
private hands before the present owners purchased it in 1937. It is leased
to the Highland Park Baptist Church of Chattanooga, Tennessee. On the bulletin, it
is called "Historic 01d Stone Baptist Church®.

Architecturally, the church is significant in the use of native sand-
stone to build a rural church (most others in Georgia were of frame or brick
construction), and is similar to the depot at Ringgold, which also survived
the Civil War. The use of sandstone was rare in Georgia, and thus the con-
struction and survival of an antebellum sandstone church is quite unusual.

Religiously, the church is significant in being one of the few antebel-

lum Presbyterian churches in Georgia, both in the establishment of a church
body, as well as a church structure. In 1850, the U.S. census indicated

[continued]
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that Georgia had only ninety-seven Presbyterian churches, comprising only five
percent of the churches in the state, with ninety percent being Baptist and

Methodist.

The cemetery is included in this nomination, due to its being associated
with the church since the beginning and is also owned by the present owners.
The burials both marked and unmarked date from the 1840s and the earliest
days of the county and the church.
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Interviews with the Rev. Ray Melear of Ringgold, Ga., by telephone, 1979.

Atlas to Accompany the Official Records of the Union and Confederate Armies,
1861-65 (Plate XCVII, No. 1, shows march by the Stone Church).

Abbott, Nell S. Within Our Bounds, A History of Cherokee Presbytery, 1844-
1974 (1975)

Telephone interview with Mr. Paul Bandy, July, 1979.

Records from The Historical Foundation of the Presbyterian and Reformed Churches,
Montreat, North Carolina, including minutes of the Cherokee Presbytery, session
records of the Chickamauga (01d Stone Church) Presbyterian Church, and other
miscellaneous items from their files.



